
 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, April 3, 2018 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI  54401 
CONFERENCE CALL 

WISLNE:  1-855-947-8255 Toll Free 
Passcode:  8864 247# 

1:00 p.m. 
 
1:00 p.m. Call to order, compliance with Open Meetings Law (Wis. Stat. 19.81-19.88) 
   

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
 

II. PUBLIC INPUT 
A. Public Comments 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Approval of minutes from March 6, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board Approve the meeting minutes from the 
March 6, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting.   
 
Voice vote required to approve. 

 

IV. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approval of Capital Borrowing 
Resolution authorizing the borrowing of $11,500,000; and providing for the issuance and 
sale of the general obligation promissory notes thereof 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College District Board move to approve the borrowing of 
$11,500,000 and providing for the issuance and sale of the general obligation promissory notes. 
 

Roll Call Vote Required to Approve.  

 
B. Partially grant-funded semi-trailer mobile manufacturing lab – Capital Purchases > $50,000 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve to utilize $250,000 of grant funds 
and apply up to $260,000 of College matching funds to purchase a semi-trailer mobile 
manufacturing lab costing approximately $510,000 to enhance student learning and increase 
student enrollment 
 
Voice vote required to approve. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REVISED 

1/42



 

 
 

C. Partially grant-funded vacuum kiln - Capital Purchases > $50,000 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approve utilize $35,000 of grant funds and 
up to $35,000 of College matching funds to purchase a vacuum kiln costing approximately $70,000 
to enhance student learning and increase student enrollment. 
 
Voice vote required to approve. 

 
D. Remodeling:  Wausau – Agriculture Center Veterinary Science Lab Renovation 

Motion:  That the Northcentral Technical College Board approves the Agriculture Center Veterinary 
Science Lab Renovation at a cost not to exceed $250,000 and requests the WTCS State Board to do 
the same.   
 
Voice vote required to approve. 

 

V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. Approval of consent Voting Agenda 

 Receipts & Expenditures  

 Personnel Changes 

Motion:  That the Board approves the Consent Voting Agenda including: 
 
Receipts & Expenditures 
Personnel Changes 
 
Roll call vote required to approve.  

 

VI. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 

1. 2018 – 2019 Draft Budget Overview – Handout - Roxanne Lutgen 
2. Comments from Informational Update 

 
B. Chairperson’s Report 

1. Spring 2018 Board Appointment Update 
o Monday, April 23rd, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. – Marathon County Courthouse 

2. WTC District Boards Association – Spring Meeting Thursday, April 12th – 14th, 2018 – 
SWTC 

 

C. Information 

1. NTC Spring Commencement – Saturday, May 19, 2018 
2. Advisory Meeting Minutes   
3. Upcoming Meetings/Events  
4. Good News 

 
 

2/42



 

 
 

 
VII. 1:35 p.m. – CLOSED SESSION 

A. Adjourn Board into Closed Session pursuant to Section 19.85 (1)  (b) (c) (e) (f) and (g) for the 
purpose of: 
1. Approval of the March 6, 2018 Closed Session Minutes 
2. Consideration of and action regarding faculty employment, including approving issuance 

of preliminary notice(s) of consideration of nonrenewal of faculty employment 
contract(s)  

3. Update on pending litigation 
4. Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, investing of public 

funds, or conducting other specified business, whenever competitive or bargaining 
reasons 

Motion:  To Adjourn Board into Closed Session Pursuant to Section 19. 85 (1)  (b) (c) (e) (f) and (g) 
for the Purpose of: 

1. Approval of the March 6, 2018 Closed Session Minutes 
2. Consideration of and action regarding faculty employment, including approving issuance 

of preliminary notice(s) of consideration of nonrenewal of faculty employment 
contract(s) 

3. Update on pending litigation 
4. Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, investing of public funds, 

or conducting other specified business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
 
Roll Call Vote Required 

 
VIII. 2:00 p.m. – OPEN SESSION 
Reconvene into Open Session to announce and/or take any action deemed necessary as a result of 
the closed session. 

The Board Chair announced that the Board took action on the Preliminary Notice of Nonrenewal 
of faculty employment contract. 

 

IX. MEETING ADJOURN 

Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law".     

 
Mission:  Northcentral Technical College provides high-quality, learner and employer focused, 
educational pathways committed to enriching lives and strengthening the economy. 

 

 

3/42



 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, March 6, 2018 
Northcentral Technical College 

1000 W. Campus Drive 
Wausau, WI  54401 

Timberwolf Conference Center D100 
 

The Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees met on March 6, 2018 at the Wausau Campus.  
Mr. Chairman Tom Felch called the meeting to order at 1:01pm. 
 

Roll Call: 

Douglas Faragher  E Ruth Risley-Gray E 
Tom Felch X Dale Smith X 
Kristine Gilmore   X Maria Volpe    X 
Lee Lo                        X Paul Proulx       X 
Charlie Paulson (joined via video 
conference.  Adjourned at 2:37 p.m.)                    

X   

 

Compliance with Open Meeting Law 
PaHnia Thao reported the meeting was being held in compliance with Open Meetings Law 19.81-19.88 of the 
Wisconsin Statutes. 

 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

A. Recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

A. Public Comments 
B. WTC District Boards Association Update – Layla Merrifield, Executive Director 

Layla Merrifield updated the Board on new bills. A handout was distributed, and is included in the 
official meeting minutes. 
 
Layla also updated the Board on the Prosper Act.  If a student was to withdraw during mid-semester, 
the institution would be responsible for returning 25% of that grant fund.  This is for Pell grant only.  
Built into this bill is a proposal of having financial aid disperse little by little, but it would cause a lot of 
other inconvenience for students.  NTC would be impacted $800K out of Operating Budget to pay back 
if this bill is passed. 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Maria Volpe that the NTC Board of Trustees meeting 
minutes from February 6, 2018 be approved.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

IV. REGULAR VOTING AGENDAS 

A. Approval of 2018 – 2019 Final Capital Budget – Roxanne Lutgen 
 

4/42



It was moved by Lee Lo and seconded by Kris Gilmore that the NTC District Board approves the 2018-
2019 final Capital Budget not to exceed the $11,800,000 capital expenditures budget, funded through 
capital borrowings of $11,500,000 and fund balance of $200,000, and donations of $100,000 including 
identified items exceeding $50,000. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

V. CONSENT VOTING AGENDA 

A. It was moved by Maria Volpe and seconded by Dale Smith that the NTC District Board approves the 
consent Voting Agenda 

 New Cosmetology Diploma Program 

 New Gas Utility Construction & Service Technical Diploma 

 Receipts & Expenditures 

 Personnel Changes 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Roll Call Vote Ayes:  Felch, Gilmore, Lo, Paulson, Proulx, Smith, Volpe 

 

VI. BOARD DEVELOPMENT 

A. Higher Learning Commission (HLC) & Credentialing – Vicki Jeppesen/Cher Vink 

Cher Vink and Vicki Jeppesen updated the Board on the HLC and Credentialing.  The handout is 
included in the official meeting minutes. 

HLC is an accrediting body that gives the official review and approval that a college is doing the right 
things.  HLC is 1 of 6 regional college accreditors in the U.S., and it oversees 19 states in the North 
Central U.S.  HLC is critical so NTC can qualify to issue financial aid.  HLC requires a full quality review of 
all-things-NTC via a comprehensive evaluation, a full systems portfolio, an annual action project, and 
annual check-in report.  The whole college works together to make sure all requirements are covered 
and complete. 

The instructor is required to have a credential higher than what they are teaching.  In the categories of 
Occupational Faculty, General Education Faculty, and Academic Faculty – Non-General Education, HLC 
requires certain credentialing.   

9 of our programs have an accrediting body that has additional expectations for instructors as well.  
Additional considerations are ongoing evaluations and performances, attitudes, previous performance 
making sure there is good quality of faculty and instruction.  We will bring back to the Board a plan on 
organizational development. 

 

B. Carnegie Math Learning Initiatives – Darren Ackley/Brooke Schindler/Mary LeBrun 

Darren Ackley-VP for Learning, Brooke Schindler-Dean of School of General Studies, and Mary Lebrun-
Math faculty briefed the Board on Carnegie Math Learning Initiatives. 

We watched a video explaining Quantway.  The goal of Quantway is to help students learn things they 
can actually use in life, not so they can memorize it for a test and then forget it.  Student will use 
numerical reasoning for decision making with real-word problems of personal, social and global 
importance.   

Teaching math in this new method will help graduates and to send them out to the workforce.  This is 
a very dynamic type of teaching method. 

Darren shared a timeline of: 

5/42



NTC will support advanced training for the implementation team during summer of 2018 

o Year 1:  (2018-2019) Recruit colleges and faculty / train faculty 

o Year 2:  (2019-2020) Initial implementation  

 Fall:  Launch of control group for measurement, and practice term 

 Spring:  Treatment group data collection 

o Year 3: (2020-2021) 

 Fall:  Second treatment implementation and data collection 

 Spring:  Analysis and writing 

NTC’s expectation is to have all math instructors learn to teach this way. 

The Carnegie Math Pathways handout and power point presentation is included in the official meeting 
minutes. 

 

VII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

A. President’s Report 

 NTC Signing Day Presentation – Kelsi Seubert/Sarah Dillon 
Kelsi Seubert and Sarah Dillon presented to the board regarding the NTC signing day. To celebrate 
National Signing Day, NTC held its first NTC School Signing Day for high school seniors to sign a 
ceremonial letter of intent acknowledging their plans to attend NTC to earn a degree.  There were 
200 students, parents and K-12 Administrators who attended. There were 29 High Schools which 8 
were out of district.  A copy of the letter of intent and power point is with the official Meeting 
minutes. 
Thank you to Brad Gast, Greg Cisewski, Andy Somers, Kelsi Seubert and Sarah Dillon for doing a 
great job with the Signing Day event.  The next NTC Signing Day is February 6, 2019. 

 Legislative Update – Elevator Speech – Katie Felch 
Board of Trustees Brief handout is included in the official meeting minutes.  UW System President 
Ray Cross announced his proposal merging two-year UW colleges with four-year UW institutions as 
part of a broader restructuring of UW Colleges and UW-Extension. 
Under his proposal, Cross will propose integrating the 13 two-year UW College campuses into UW 
four-year institutions, effective July 1, 2018.  UW-Marathon County & UW-Marshfield/Wood 
County would align with UW-Stevens Point under the proposed structure. 

 Comments from Informational Update 
Our Grants team worked on a Fast Forward grant.  NTC has a partnership with Wausau East High 
School.  Thanks to Greg Cisewski’s leadership, we are moving forward with Auto Collision Program. 
In the Graduate Follow-up Report, 82% of graduates are employed in their career field. 
Lori met with Secretary Allen regarding grant funding. 
Lori’s opinion continues to be asked regarding the UW merger. 
The Kiwanis Group used our facility for their meeting.  Brad Gast and Lori presented and did a 
wonderful job.  PaHnia Thao provided the Kiwanis group excellent customer service, and they 
complimented her customer service several times.  She did a great job.  Lori was given the 
message of understanding the importance of customer service.  The Wausau Chamber had their 
event here and they loved it here.   
 

B. Chairperson’s Report 

 Spring 2018 Board Appointment Update  
o NTC Board Appointment Date – Friday, March 16, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. – Marathon County 

Courthouse 
Dale Smith will be reapplying for the NTC Board Appointment. 

6/42



 WTC District Boards Association – Spring Meeting Thursday, April 12th – 14th, 2018 – SWTC 
Let PaHnia know if you are interested in attending. 
Congratulations to Dale Smith on winning the 2018 Jefferson Award. 
Congratulations to Ruth Risley-Gray on winning the 2018 State Nursing Leadership Award.  Ruth is 
on vacation so we will see her next month. 
 

C. Information 

 Capital Projects Monitoring Report 

 Advisory Meeting Minutes 

 Upcoming Meetings/Events   

 Good News  

 
VIII.CLOSED SESSION  2:37pm 

A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Lee Lo with unanimous approval to adjourn Board into 
Closed Session Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85 (1) (b), (f), and (g) for the purpose:     

 Approval of the February 6, 2018 Closed Session Minutes 

 Update regarding pending litigation 

 Update on personnel 
 

Roll call:  Felch, Gilmore, Lo, Proulx, Smith, Volpe 
 

IX. OPEN SESSION (Immediately following the above Closed Session) 
A. It was moved by Paul Proulx and seconded by Dale Smith with unanimous approval to reconvene into 

Open Session to take any action deemed necessary as a result of the closed session. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Roll call:  Felch, Gilmore, Lo, Proulx, Smith, Volpe 
 

VII. MEETING ADJOURN 
By consensus the meeting adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Maria Volpe, Secretary/Treasurer 
Northcentral Technical College District Board of Trustees 
 
Note:   Meetings of the Northcentral Technical College District Board are held in compliance with 
Wisconsin's "Open Meetings Law". 

7/42



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
MEETING DATE: April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Authorizing the Borrowing of $11,500,000; and providing for the 
   Issuance and Sale of General Obligation Promissory Notes Thereof 
    
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, 
shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either 
imprudent or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure 
to be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will 
follow Wisconsin statute 38.16 “District Tax Levy (2) The district board may borrow money and levy taxes 
to be used for the purchase or construction of buildings and for additions, enlargements and 
improvements to buildings and for the acquisition of sites and equipment.  In financing activities under this 
subsection, the district may issue its bonds or promissory notes under ch. 67 to pay the cost thereof.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS:  The attached resolution is passed each year in order to notify taxpayers of the  
District’s intent to borrow for capital expenditures.  A notice will be published in the local newspaper  
informing the taxpayers of their right to petition for a referendum within 30 days.  If no petition is 
received, the District may proceed with quotations for the borrowing. 
 
The total capital expenditure of $11,800,000 was approved at the March 6, 2018 board meeting.  The sale 
of promissory notes of $11,500,000 will include this authorization at the May 1, 2018 board meeting.   
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION:  
Voting Agenda (roll call vote)    Move to approve the following resolution: Authorizing 

the borrowing of $11,500,000 and providing for the 
issuance and sale of general obligation promissory 
notes.  

 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
 
 
Signed____________________________________________ Dated  March 27, 2018 

8/42



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE BORROWING 

OF $11,500,000; AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES THEREFOR 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that funds be raised by the Northcentral Technical College District, Clark, Langlade, 

Lincoln, Marathon, Menominee, Portage, Price, Shawano, Taylor and Waupaca Counties, Wisconsin (the “District”) for the 

purpose of paying the cost of the District’s 2018-19 Capital Budget, to wit: construction of building additions on the Merrill 

Campus (not to exceed $1,500,000); remodeling and improvement projects (not to exceed $1,500,000); building and site 

maintenance and repairs; site improvements; and equipment acquisition, installation and related costs (the “Project”), and 

there are insufficient funds on hand to pay said costs; 

WHEREAS, the District hereby finds and determines that the Project is within the District’s power to undertake 

and serves a “public purpose” as that term is defined in Section 67.04(1)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes; and, 

WHEREAS, technical college districts are authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes to borrow money and to issue general obligation promissory notes for such public purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the District Board of the District that: 

Section 1.  Authorization of the Notes.  For the purpose of paying the cost of the Project, there shall be borrowed 

pursuant to Section 67.12(12) of the Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of ELEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($11,500,000) from a purchaser to be determined by a subsequent resolution of this District 

Board. 

Section 2.  Sale of the Notes.  To evidence such indebtedness, the Chairperson and Secretary-Treasurer are hereby 

authorized, empowered and directed to make, execute, issue and sell to said purchaser(s) for, on behalf of and in the name 

of the District, general obligation promissory notes in the principal amount of ELEVEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($11,500,000) (the “Notes”). 

Section 3.  Notice to Electors.  Pursuant to Section 67.12(12)(e)5 of the Wisconsin Statutes, the District Secretary-

Treasurer will, within ten (10) days of adoption of this Resolution, cause public notice of such adoption to be given to the 

electors of the District by publishing a notice in The Wausau Daily Herald, the official newspaper of the District.  The 

notice to electors shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

Section 4.  Prior Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date. All prior resolutions, rules or other actions of the 

District or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the 

same may so conflict.  In the event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or 

invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take effect immediately 

upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

Adopted and recorded this 3rd day of April, 2018. 

  

Thomas Felch, 

Chairperson 

Attest: 

  

Maria Volpe, 

Secretary-Treasurer 

9/42



 

 

NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Partially grant-funded semi-trailer mobile manufacturing lab –  
  Capital Purchases > $50,000. 

 
POLICY 1.6.5 Asset Protection – may not make any purchases or commit the organization to any expendi-
ture of greater than $50,000. 
 
INTERPRETATION: Expenditures greater than $50,000 must have board approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS: Pending receipt of grant funds, the College will apply $250,000 in grant funds and up to 
$260,000 of College matching funds toward the purchase of a semi-trailer mobile manufacturing lab cost-
ing approximately $510,000 for use in our Machine Tool program. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY: 
Regular Voting Agenda 

 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
Approval to utilize $250,000 of grant funds 
and apply up to $260,000 of College matching 
funds to purchase a semi-trailer mobile man-
ufacturing lab costing approximately 
$510,000 to enhance student learning and in-
crease student enrollment. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
Signed____________________________________________ Dated_____4/3/2018________ 

 

10/42



 

 

NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE:  April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Partially grant-funded vacuum kiln - Capital Purchases > $50,000. 

 
POLICY 1.6.5 Asset Protection – may not make any purchases or commit the organization to any expendi-
ture of greater than $50,000. 
 
INTERPRETATION: Expenditures greater than $50,000 must have board approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS: Pending receipt of grant funds, the College will apply $35,000 in grant funds and up to 
$35,000 of College matching funds toward the purchase of a vacuum kiln costing approximately $70,000 
for use in our Wood Technology program. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY: 
Regular Voting Agenda 

 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
Approval to utilize $35,000 of grant funds and 
up to $35,000 of College matching funds to 
purchase a vacuum kiln costing approximately 
$70,000 to enhance student learning and in-
crease student enrollment. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
Signed____________________________________________ Dated_____4/3/2018________ 

 

11/42



  

 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
MEETING DATE: April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Remodeling: Wausau – Ag Center Veterinary Science Lab Renovation 
 
POLICY: Wisconsin Statute 38 – Technical College System, 38.14 District Board Powers – (2) Buildings and 
Equipment. (a) For the use of the district schools the district board may: (3) Construct, enlarge, or improve 
buildings.  
 
TCS 5.04 (4) (a) A resolution of the district board approving the remodeling of existing facilities, (b) A reso-
lution of the district board requesting board (WTCS) approval of the remodeling. 
 
INTERPRETATION: Remodeling of existing facilities requires Board approval.  
 
DATA/RESULTS:  At the March 2018 Board meeting, the capital budget was approved for FY2018-19.  
Funding for the Ag Center Veterinary Science Lab was approved at this time.  This project is the final phase 
of the expansion of the Agriculture Center of Excellence that began in 2018 with the expansion of the mo-
bile classroom building and the robotic feeder addition.  This project will remodel approximately 1,500 
sq.ft. of the main parlor building currently used for storage and a tiered classroom.  This renovation is 
needed to provide a safe and approved science lab for the veterinary program while supporting multiple 
programs and increases in FTE.  In order to begin construction in May, the College will be requesting WTCS 
State Board approval at its  May Board Meeting.  The NTC Board is asked to approve the proposed renova-
tion and request the WTCS State Board to do the same.  A packet evidencing compliance with the statutes 
will be submitted to the State Board with the application. 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 

Voting Agenda BE IT RESOLVED that the Northcentral Technical 
College Board Approves the Ag Center Veterinary 
Science Lab Renovation at a cost not to exceed 
$250,000 and requests the WTCS State Board to 
do the same. 

 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of this 
date. 
 
 

Signed      Dated:  March 23, 2018   

  
 

12/42



 
NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 

 
 
 
 
MEETING DATE: April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:   Receipts & Expenditures 
  
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, 
shall not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either im-
prudent or in violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to 
be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: To avoid violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics NTC will fol-
low Wisconsin statute 38.12 District Board Duties (2) “…All expenditures exceeding $2500 shall be ap-
proved by the district board.”  Also, in compliance with Wisconsin statute 38.12(4) District board duties, 
“The publication proceedings shall include a statement of receipts and expenditures in the aggregate.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: The following Status of Funds listing receipts and expenditures including operating trans-
fers in the aggregate is included for informational purposes as of February 28, 2018. 
 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Revenues: $72,703,252 
YTD Fund 1 – 7 Expenses:  $68,553,732 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:       PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as 
of this date. 
 
 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated    _March 23, 2018_____ 

13/42



NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TOPIC SUMMARY SHEET 
 
MEETING DATE:      April 3, 2018 
 
TOPIC:  Personnel Changes 
 
POLICY 1.1 – General Executive Constraint – The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), in execution of her duties, shall 
not cause or allow any practice, activity, decision or organizational circumstance which is either imprudent or in 
violation of commonly accepted business and professional ethics or that results in failure to be accredited. 
 
INTERPRETATION: NTC will follow Wisconsin Statute 118.22 (2) “…No teacher may be employed… except by a 
majority vote of the full membership of the board.  Nothing in this section prevents the modification or termi-
nation of a contract by mutual agreement of the teacher and the board.” 
 
DATA/RESULTS: A request is made to approve the following personnel changes: 
 
New Hires: 

1. Ashlee Neve - Career Coach 
 

Resignations: 
1. Tiffany Brown – Custodian 
2. Logan Brown –  Web Development Coordinator 
3. Craig Stancher – Marketing Coordinator 
4. Jessica Nickel – Custodian 

 
Retirement: 

1. James Zoellner – Testing Specialist (West Region) – No later than June 1, 2018 
2. Marie Auner –  Computer Information Technology Faculty – No later than June 29, 2018 
3. Richard Chartier – Business and Leadership Development Faculty – No later than December 31, 2018 
4. Francine Nettesheim – Math Faculty – No later than June 29, 2018 
5. MerrieBeth Russ – Graphic Communication Faculty – No later than June 29, 2018 
6. Laurie Schulz – Mechanical Design Faculty – No later than June 29, 2018 
7. Dawn Eckert – Computer Information Technology Faculty – No later than June 29, 2018 

 
 
 
AGENDA CATEGORY:     PROPOSED MOTION: 
Consent Agenda                                                    (Motion is included with consent agenda.) 
 
CERTIFICATION OF ACCURACY:  I, your CEO, certify that the information contained in this report is true as of 
this date. 
 
Signed_______________________________________ Dated _________3/27/18           _______ 

14/42



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: February 12, 2018 Program Name: Diesel 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Traci Champagne – Crystal Freight Systems 

 Corey Heckendorf – Wisconsin Kenworth 

 Jeremy Tritten – Wisconsin Kenworth 

 Jon Shimel – JX Truck Center 

 Jason Wendell – Truck Equipment, Inc. 

 Ryan Viegutz – Abbyland Service Plaza 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Greg Cisewski – Dean, School of Advanced Manufacturing & Transportation 

 Jared Eggebrecht – Business Development Manager, Business & Industry 

 James Eckardt – Diesel Instructor 

 Eric Antonson – Diesel Instructor 

 Steve Wittenberg – ABE Instructor 

 Becky Zoromski - WATEA 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 INDUSTRY TRENDS:  Members shared that they are hearing mixed opinions on the electronic logs.  On the sales 
side, Wisconsin Kenworth was seeing approximately 1000 trucks ordered a week and recently it went to 500 a 
day.  It was shared that Peterbilt and Volvo are seeing a similar increase in sales.  Members shared that when the 
2013 trucks come on to the used market we will see more residual in the market.  Trucks that are 1999 and older 
are hitting market due to their exemption to the electronic log requirement.  Third party logistics have been 
heavy.  Members are all seeing a shortage in technicians.  Kenworth could use 1-2 technicians on each of their 
three shifts.  Abbyland, Truck Equipment and Crystal agreed that they could use 2-3 technicians on each shift.  The 
employers felt the graduates are working out well for employers. 

 ENROLLMENT REPORT: The Diesel program has 17 second semester students, 10 fourth semester students, and 
two part-time students.  The program capacity has been increased to 22 students.  We are at max capacity in the 
lab with 22 students.  Safety is important and instructors have designed some limitations to make sure safety is a 
priority. 

 ABE INSTRUCTOR:  Steve Wittenberg is helping students with their math skills and other general education 
requirements.  We have been looking at aligning cohorts so that technical students are sharing a section of the 
general studies class and that the curriculum is applicable to their program field.   

 EQUIPMENT UPDATE:  The program has added five engines and cut-aways.  The cut-away engines are 
indispensable when recruiting high school students because they can see the inner workings of the engine which 
sparks a great deal of interest.  We have added a technology tracker with full collision mitigation, stability control, 
active cruise, radar system, and emissions measurement equipment.  With the acquisition of the new engines, we 
are looking to donate a couple of the aged Mercedez engines to high schools.  We have a three-D projector where 
the student can see an engine in 3D. Youth Apprenticeship students have been an asset to the program with the 
knowledge they have shown coming into the program. 

 DIESEL GRANT:  NTC has been successful in acquiring grants for this program.  James and Eric have outfitted this 
diesel program with grant funds and this has been very advantageous for the program.  We are in the reporting 
phase of some of the grants.  The committee asked that the next meeting of the Diesel Advisory Committee be 
held at the Diesel facility so members can see the facility and equipment being used by students. 

 WATEA UPDATE:  Memberships are being received.  WATEA is finalizing a strategic plan and how they can help 
with area training.  The Annual Meeting will tentatively be held on Tuesday, March 6, 2018.  Details for the 
meeting are being confirmed and invitations will be sent out shortly.  A $50,000 check from WATEA will be 
received to help with the Auto Collision, Automotive, CDL, and Diesel programs.  A grant through DWD will help 

15/42



fund the restart for the Auto Collision program to be housed at the Wausau Campus and Wausau East along with 
a two-year grant from the Workforce Development Board. 

 CDL CERTIFICATION UPDATE:  Mike Sewell is working on having the Diesel students acquire their CDL license as 
part of their last Diesel program class.  Some requirements have been restructured to have students acquire a 
temporary license and obtain training.  Completing the class doesn’t not guarantee that the individual is 
insurable.       

 CONTINUING EDUCATION AND BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY (BIS):  Jared Eggebrecht shared instructions on how 
employers can post job openings on Tech Connect.  Jared shared that BIS can offer mechanical skills testing for 
any position that deals with mechanical aptitude.   A program called NTC FUSION was shared with employers 
which offers the opportunity to purchase Welding and Machine Tool training per seat for each eight hour training 
session.  A handout was distributed for leadership courses.  Safety training is always offered through BIS.  
Leadercast is world’s largest leadership conference which will be offered through a live feed and support of the 
Wausau Chamber and their Business Essential Series.  April 1st is the deadline for applications for new grant 
funding so if employers have a need and wish to apply for grant dollars they should contact Jared and discuss your 
needs.   

 

SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date: February 14, 2018 Program Name: Truck Driving 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Traci Champagne – Crystal Freight Systems 

 Marty Robbins – Marathon Cheese Transport 

 Joe Welter – Wausau Supply 

 Rod Parmenter –  Truck Equipment 

 Ryan Viergutz – Abbyland Service Plaza 

 Kelly Trojanowski – Sutton Transport 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Greg Cisewski – Dean, School of Advanced Manufacturing and Transportation 

 Ashley Deavers – Business & Industry 

 Mike Sewell – Truck Driving Instructor 

 Jared Eggebrecht – Business & Industry 

 Katie Metko – Learning Coordinator 

 Susan Clark – Administrative Assistant 

 Becky Zoromski - WATEA 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 INDUSTRY TRENDS:  Marty Robbins shared that fuel prices are going up.  Labor and fuel are the top two costs for 
most fleets.  Oil prices are at $65 a barrel and expected to possibly move to $70 a barrel at the end of 2018.  U.S. 
shale producers increased their output in 2017.  The driver shortage is estimated to be approximately 35,000 
drivers.  Rates are increasing due to the economy, driver shortage, and ELD’s. Retailers are cutting cost and 
demanding tighter delivery schedules.  Lighter equipment equates to the ability to increase payload.  The spot 
market is being used more by haulers.  Rod Parmenter, Truck Equipment, stated that dry van and reefer units will 
be sold out for 2018 shortly.  Ryan Viergutz from Abbyland mentioned that they have added trackers to all their 
reefer units.  Joe Welter, Wausau Supply and Kelly Trojanowski, Sutton Transport, along with all of the committee 
members present said they are in need of qualified drivers. Committee had a discussion on the ELD’s and which 
systems each company is using such as Omnitracs, Peoplenet, TMW, Fleetmatics and Zada.  The availability of 
CNG (compressed natural gas) trucks and their fueling stations were shared by members of the committee. Ryan 
Viegutz, Abbyland Service Plaza, mentioned that he may have a mobile electronic logging unit that he could 
provide to the CDL program.  Traci Champagne also mentioned that it might be worth Mike’s time to contact 

16/42



Badger Fleet who has mobile electronic logging units that maybe available for training students.   

 ENROLLMENT REPORT: Mike shared the enrollment totals since the program was started. Our first section in 
spring of 2016 was 3, our next two sections each had 4. Our first section in spring of 2017 had 8 and 7 in our 
second section. Summer of 2017 had 11 students with fall of 2017 had 12.  We currently have 9 students enrolled 
in the spring 2018 session.  The next section will start on April 2nd.  Grant funding from WATEA funded the 
majority of last year’s students.  Our January section was at 75% capacity and we have two students enrolled for 
the April section.  We have processed over 50 truck drivers in this program and all of those that have completed 
the program are employed.  Automatic transmissions have been used by some of the employers to minimize back, 
knee, shoulder and neck issues in older drivers.  The automatic transmissions extend a drivers employability for 
two or three years.  Each student completing the program has an average of 400-500 miles on the road.  Mike 
shared information on the average age of students in the program which is about 24 years of age. 

 RECRUITMENT: We are sponsoring a night at State Park Raceway on July 28, 2018 to help with program 
recruitment.  The trucks will be onsite to highlight the Diesel program as well as the CDL program.     

 NEW CDL TRAINING CENTER:  The new building housing CDL classrooms and service bays will be located at the 
corner of Taylor and Commerce in Merrill.  The building will be constructed in three phases including the basic 
structure, then classrooms and finally the expansion of the bays.  There will be 2 classrooms, one for CDL and one 
for the new Electrical Power Distribution program.   

 WATEA GRANT UPDATE:  The WATEA Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday, March 6, 2018. The keynote 
speaker will be Dr. Morna Foy, President, Wisconsin Technical College System.  This will be held at the Garden 
Hilton in Wausau.  It was announced that the WATEA Golf Outing will be held on July 27, 2018 with entertainment 
provided by Johnny and the Motowns.   

 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT UPDATE: NTC currently has nine power units and one day cab.  NTC acquired a 2014 
Cascadia with a shorter wheelbase and shorter sleeper that included the collision avoidance system.  Elite trucking 
is looking at providing three trucks which should be here shortly. We are looking for a drop deck trailer to train the 
basics of load securing.  Requests for new trucks will be submitted this fall.  We are looking to acquire an ATV to 
transport students between the pad and the new CDL classroom building.  At this time, we are doing the skid pad 
training in Eau Claire and we are looking at getting some type of vehicle to transport students with just one 
person, instructor or instructional assistant, back and forth to Eau Claire.  The committee was thanked for their 
support of the program by providing trucks.  Mike gave a curriculum overview at the previous meeting, but added 
that he trains students with more skills than are just on the CDL test.  NTC training includes offset backing, alley, 
straight-line and blind side backing, parallel parking, and maneuvering in untraditional situations.  He includes 
safe driver training, nutrition and personal finance.  

 CONTINUING EDUCATION AND BUSINESS & INDUSTRY INITIATIVES:  Jared Eggebrecht, Director of Business and 
Industry, shared that BI has many offerings to train incumbent workers.  He mentioned the Fusion program, which 
is currently underway, allows employers to buy seats of training for any number of employees for an eight hour 
session.  The Fusion program is offering Machine Tool and Welding courses at $125 a day for a CWIMMA 
members and $150 for non-members.  Virtual College is offered for individuals who need flexibility in their 
learning with self-paced and online courses.  Supervisory and management courses are offered according to your 
need. Committee members were asked to contact Jared if they have any questions or any training needs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17/42



SUMMARY OF ADVISORY MINUTES FOR NTC BOARD PACKET 

Meeting Date:  February 22, 2018 Program Name:  Automotive 

Attendees 

Industry Members 

 Ray Bikowski – SnapOn Tools 

 Chris Gardipee – Stewart Ave Collision & Repair 

 Adam Olson – DC Everest High School  

 Aaron Hoffman – DC Everest High School 

 Mark Poppe – Wausau East School 

NTC Staff: Other 

 Ross Nevienski – Auto Instructor 

 Randy Wesenick – Auto Instructor 

 Matt Klug – Auto Instructor  

 Tracey Brewer – Business & Industry 

  Greg Cisewski – Dean, School of Advanced Manufacturing & 
Transportation 

 Susan Clark – Administrative Assistant 

 Becky Zoromski – WATEA 
 

Summary—Include a brief statement(s) of topics and action items 

 INDUSTRY TRENDS:  Randy Wesenick shared that the average student in the automotive program is attending 
right after high school.  Instructors are stressing critical thinking as an important skill that students must have to 
be a productive and educated employee in the workplace. 

 DWD GRANT:  NTC has applied for a grant through the local Department of Workforce Development office along 
with local businesses to provide collision repair.  This will be a shortened version of the Auto Collision degree that 
was previously offered.  NTC will be structuring the class in partnership with Wausau East.   NTC anticipates the 
grant to be approved shortly.  Capacity of this program will be 14 students.   

 DC EVEREST REFERENDUM:  Aaron Hoffman, DC Everest, gave an overview of the referendum on the voting ballot 
on April 3, 2018.  The improvements are to increase capacities, improve learning spaces, safety, and infrastructure.  
The technical education areas of the high school will be remodeled and expanded.   

 ENROLLMENT REPORT:  The instructors shared they have 13 students in first semester, 14 students in second 
semester, 3 students in third semester and 9 students in fourth semester.  Fourth semester students are a very 
good group and the majority of them are working part time.  We are full for the fall semester with 23 applications.  
Waitlist students are being offered general education courses as an option.   

 ATUO CLUB UPDATE:   Auto Club had approximately seven students who worked to replaced two engines and one 
transmission for Wheels to Work during the winter term.  WATEA funded a bus for 15 students and instructor Matt 
Klug to the Auto Show in Chicago.  Students had an exciting time at the show and it was a great learning 
experience.  

 SKILLS USA:   We had approximately nine students in the competition that was held at NTC.  There will be three to 
four students that would like to compete at the state completion.  The district and regional competitions are great 
for getting students ready for the state competition.  It is an exciting competition for students from high school 
through college.  It was suggested that NTC might consider recruiting students at the competitions. 

 AUTO CAREER EXPO:  The Auto Career Expo that was held at Fred Mueller Automotive was attended by 64 
students and was a great success.  The survey that was completed by attendees showed very positive comments 
on the event.  The students valued the hands on part of the expo.  Parents and grandparents accompanied 
students so it was a family promotional event.  Students showed quite a bit of interest in the auto collision area.  
The Diesel program was represented with several semi-trucks onsite letting students investigate the Diesel 
program.  The turnout was very encouraging for the industries represented.  It was suggested to invite area 
employers to staff a table and promote their business at this event.  The Automotive team commented that this is 
an educational and recruitment event for the automotive industry as a whole, with numerous businesses 

18/42



contributing to the event in one form or another.  One concern is if the students will continue with their education 
if they are partially or fully employed in the field upon high school graduation. 

 CURRICULUM MODIFICATION:  Handouts were distributed explaining the credit changes for the associate degree 
from 68 credits to 64 credits.  The change in credits was the result of our college being nominated for the Aspen 
Award.  It was evident that four year institution require 120 credits to graduate and that most of the state’s 
technical college were at about 60-64 credits per program.   A handout was shared that showed in 2017 there 
were 848 job openings for automotive service technicians and mechanics.  This is 21 percent above the national 
average and shows the great need we have for technicians.  Introduction to Sociology has been removed from the 
Automotive Technology associate degree and we have changed the Welding requirement from Introduction to 
Welding to a one credit Automotive Welding class.   This will make the Welding class much more applicable to the 
automotive field.  Welding dual credit classes will still be accepted to fulfill the welding requirement at NTC.  The 
Automotive Technician program added Written Communications to the program requirements.  Retention was an 
issue with the first and second semester students which prompted the lowering of the credits early in the program.  
Greg complimented Randy, Matt and Ross on their efforts to restructure the program for students.  The committee 
was in agreement to approve the changes as presented to the committee. 

 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT:  The Automotive program will be replacing some cadaver vehicles with 2012-2014 vehicles 
to have access to newer technology.  Chris Gardipee, Stewart Ave Collision & Repair, offered to notify NTC if he has 
any salvage vehicles which may be beneficial for teaching students.  The instructors were open to this idea of 
possibly using salvage vehicles and would like to review their value to the program on a case by case basis. 

 WATEA GRANT UPDATE:  The WATEA Annual Meeting will be held on Tuesday, March 6, 2018. The keynote 
speaker will be Dr. Morna Foy, President, of the Wisconsin Technical College System.  This will be held at the Hilton 
Garden in Wausau.  It was announced that the WATEA Golf Outing will be held on July 27, 2018 with 
entertainment provided by Johnny and the Motowns.   

 CONTINUING EDUCATION AND BUSINESS & INDUSTRY INITIATIVES:  Tracey Brewer shared several events that 
Business & Industry and Continuing Education are promoting this spring.  There will be an event on March 6, 2018 
to brainstorm on the employee shortage in our area.  Derek Heikkinen, Workforce Development Board, will be 
providing some state statistics on employment.  Bruce Keen will share some information on how Training Within 
Industry (TWI) and Six Sigma may be able to help your business during the worker shortage.  It was also mentioned 
that this year’s Leadercast will be held on May 18, 2018.  Committee members were asked to contact Tracey if 
they have any questions or need any further information on any of these events.  

 MIND TREKKERS EVENT:  The flyer was distributed giving detailed information on how employers can support this 
event which is done in partnership with Michigan Tech.  This is our third time hosting this event.  It will be held on 
a Friday, September 21, 2018 for sixth and seventh graders and Saturday, September 22, 2018 for the public.  
Committee members can contact Sheila Rossmiller if you want more information or would like to have a booth at 
this event.                                                                                                                                   

 

 

19/42



 
 

 

  Board of Trustees Meetings/Upcoming Events - 2017-2018                  
 

Date 
 

Event 

D
o
u

g
la

s
 

F
a

ra
g

h
e

r 

T
o

m
 

F
e

lc
h
 

K
ri

s
ti
n

e
 

G
ilm

o
re

 

L
e

e
  

L
o
 

C
h
a

rl
ie

 

P
a

u
ls

o
n
 

P
a

u
l 

P
ro

u
lx

 

R
u
th

 

R
is

le
y
-G

ra
y
 

D
a
le

 

S
m

it
h
 

M
a

ri
a
 

V
o

lp
e
 

2017           

July 10 Annual Organizational Meeting (Wausau) X X E X X X X X X 

July 13-15 WTC District Board Assn. Summer Meeting (Kenosha)          

Aug 8 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) E X E X X X X X X 

Sept 13 A Day for NTC Students (Medford)     X     

Sept 19 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau Campus) X E X X X X X X X 

Sept 25-28 ACCT Leadership Congress (Las Vegas, NV)      X   X 

Sept 27 A Day for NTC Students (Antigo)          

Oct 24 Tactical Safety Range Ribbon Cutting (Merrill) 
NTC Board & NTC Foundation Joint Lunch (Merrill) 
Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Merrill) 

X X X X E X E X X 

Nov 1-4 WTC District Board Assn. (Waukesha)      X   X 

Nov 9 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

Nov 16 Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

Dec 5 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) X X X E E X X X X 

Dec 16 Mid-Winter Commencement (Grand Theatre)  X X   X X X  

2018           

Jan 9 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) X X X X X X X X X 

Feb 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) X X E X E X X X X 

Feb 11-14 ACCT National Legislative Summit (TBD)          

Mar 6 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau) E X X X X X E X X 

Mar 7 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)      X    

Apr 3 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

Apr 26 Scholars & Donors Reception (3:30 – 5:30)          

May 1 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

May 10 A Day for NTC Students (Wausau)          

May 19 Commencement (Wausau West Fieldhouse (9:00 – 12:00)          

June 12 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

June 14 NTC Foundation Regular Meeting (4:00 – 5:30)          

July 9 Regular NTC Board of Trustees Meeting (Wausau)          

 
 Updated:  3/23/18 

20/42



21/42



22/42



23/42



24/42



25/42



26/42



27/42



28/42



29/42



30/42



31/42



32/42



33/42



34/42



35/42



36/42



37/42



38/42


	NTC Board Agenda - Apr 3
	Approval of minutes from March 6, 2018 Board of Trustees meeting 

	Approval of Capital Borrowing 

	Partially grant-funded semi-trailer mobile manufacturing lab – Capital Purchases &gt; $50,000 

	Partially grant-funded vacuum kiln - Capital Purchases &gt; $50,000 

	Remodeling_  Wausau – Agriculture Center Veterinary Science Lab Renovation 

	Receipts &amp; Expenditures 

	Personnel Changes 

	Advisory Meeting Minutes  

	Upcoming Meetings_Events 

	Good News 

	Approval of the March 6, 2018 Closed Session Minutes 

	2. Consideration of and action regarding faculty employment, including approving issuance of preliminary notice(s) of consideration of nonrenewal of faculty employment contract(s)
	Preliminary Notice to T.P.

